
Page 1 of 8, July 1, 2013 
 

 
Osakis City Council – Regular Meeting 

July 1, 2013 
7:00 PM 

 
 
Present:  Kip Emerson, Randy Anderson, Kyle Kostrzewski, Jerry Olson, Bruce Pederson 
Absent:  None 
Others Present:  Lynnette Swenstad, Chad Gulbranson, Kurt Haakinson, Craig Dropik, Chad Mathews, 
Julie Blair, Roberta Olson, Dean Alcott, Rose Alcott, Theresa Zajler-Williams, Deb Dowell, Dennis 
Ruhoff, Mary Ruhoff, Steve Steinle, Al Kral, Kearney Frank, Justin Dahlheimer, Chub Hensley 
Meeting called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor Emerson.  
 
Pledge of Allegiance was spoken. 
 
Motion by Anderson, seconded by Olson, to approve the agenda as presented with the additions of 
Sandy Shores Townhomes and the Concrete Plant.  All Ayes  
 
Motion by Pederson, seconded by Kostrzewski, to approve the general consent items, including the June 
city bills in the amount of $323,413.77, and June 3, 2013 meeting minutes.  All Ayes 
 
Mayor Emerson thanked all the people that helped out with the recent storm.  Kurt and Darrin did a 
great job.  The Police were involved, the Fire Department and others that were helping did not stop 
working.  Emerson said that everything was handled very well. 
 
Project #24:  Liquor Store 
 
Julie Blair was in attendance.   Blair stated that the month was better than expected.   
 
The council received the monthly reports for June 2013. 

• Off Sale total is $4,793.79 
• On Sale total is $8,350.76 
• Total profit for June  is $13,144.55 

 
Sales are down from last year, but it was a much better spring in 2012. 
 
After the storm, a generator was borrowed to keep the food freezers going.  The Liquor Store did shut 
down from 2:30 to 7:00 due to the power outage. 
 
Blair informed the council that the street dance went very well.  Did not have any issues.   
 
Project #73:  First Responders 
 
Craig Dropik was in attendance and said that it was a busy month again.  Council received the June run 
report which included 16 calls for the month.   
 
Dropik also informed the council that the pork feed at the street dance went over well.  Sales at the 
dance were over $500.00. 
 
The First Responders are working with the Fire Department to purchase a new defibrillator.  Their old 
one  will be purchased by the Fire Department to be carried with the Fire Department. 



Page 2 of 8, July 1, 2013 
 

 
Project #74:  Fire Department 
 
Chad Mathews was in attendance.  Mathews informed the council that the Fire Department had 5 calls in 
June.  They included 1 call for mutual aid with Sauk Centre for a structure fire, 1 weather watch call, 2 
grass fires and 1 call to investigate a carbon monoxide issue. 
 
Mathews said that it will be good to have a defibrillator on the fire trucks.   
 
The fireworks have been picked up, sorted and are ready for the 4th of July. 
 
Olson asked about the community center being used for a storm shelter. 
 
Mathews said that there are usually fire fighters in the hall during a weather watch and storm, but 
encourage people to find a better place for shelter other than the community center. 
 
The school may be a possibility but the council is unsure if it would be unlocked. 
 
Emerson said that after the storm, the community center or school may be the place to go for shelter. 
 
Project #76:  Police 
 
Chief Gulbranson was in attendance.  Council received the June police report.   
 
Officer Calvin Uhl was recognized for an award.  Uhl received the J. Edgar Hoover Gold Medal Award. 
 
Chief Gulbranson also noted that Officer Uhl was in charge of the bike rodeo this year in which over 40 
kids participated. 
 
Council received resolutions to allow part-time officers to participate in the PERA Police & Fire Plan. 
 
Resolution #2013-13 was presented by Emerson, seconded by Anderson, to allow part-time Officer Dan 
Wacker to participate in PERA Police & Fire Plan.  When put to a vote, the Resolution passed 
unanimously.  
 
Resolution #2013-14 was presented by Kostrzewski, seconded by Emerson, to allow part-time Officer 
Tyler Thunstedt to participate in PERA Police & Fire Plan.  When put to a vote, the Resolution passed 
unanimously.  
 
Resolution #2013-15 was presented by Anderson, seconded by Pederson, to allow part-time Officer 
Charles Swiggum to participate in PERA Police & Fire Plan.  When put to a vote, the Resolution passed 
unanimously.  
 
Resolution #2013-16 was presented by Pederson, seconded by Kostrzewski, to allow part-time Officer 
Mark Grinstead to participate in PERA Police & Fire Plan.  When put to a vote, the Resolution passed 
unanimously.  
 
Emerson stated that he has had a couple calls regarding people driving too fast down Oak Street West.   
 
Discussion was held regarding putting in a 4-way stop at Oak Street West & 4th Avenue West. 
 
Gulbranson will get a speed control sigh to place down on Oak Street West for a couple days. 



Page 3 of 8, July 1, 2013 
 

 
Gulbranson asked the council about a raise for the part-timers.  They are getting $13.00 per hour at this 
time.  Some work in other towns and are getting $15.00 to $17.00.  Gulbranson will bring more 
information to the next council meeting. 
 
There have been issues regarding semi-trucks driving down Osage Street East.  Gulbranson will talk to 
the lumber yard about this issue. 
 
Project #205:  City Crew 
 
Haakinson was in attendance. 
 
Haakinson said it has been a busy month.  Haakinson informed the council of the following: 

• Water plant office is done. 
• City will have to have a second discharge. 
• City crew had completed the street painting. 
• 2nd Avenue East, Oak Street West & 8th Avenue West have been paved. 
• Dealing with the storm clean up. 

 
Landteam had volunteers in Osakis to help last week with the brush clean up.  Some did not get picked 
up, but the city crew will take care of it. 
 
Punky Didier will be cleaning up the boat landing.  Haakinson said that the old dock will be put in for 
the 4th of July weekend.  The DNR is repairing the new dock which was damaged in the storm. 
 
Project #443:  2012 Improvements 
 
Theresa Zajler-Williams and Deb Dowell were in attendance. Dowell spoke on behalf of Zajler-
Williams.  Theresa has been very upset with the project.  Dowell stated that she has retained a lawyer 
and the council was given information regarding Physical damages sustained by Theresa.   
 
Dowell explained several issues that Theresa has had during the construction period.  Dowell said that 
Theresa’s house was shaking due to the construction trucks and was concerned the house shifted.  She 
was very upset that someone looked under her house when she was not home.   
 
Theresa would like a call about the date the person was looking under her house when she was not 
home. 
 
Dowell also said she was landlocked and had to get her car out through her neighbor’s yard.  She wasn’t 
able to use her driveway. 
 
There were several residents who did not have driveways but the street has been paved and will be 
finished soon.  Dowell said that Theresa should have had a driveway due to her being a disabled adult.  
Dowell would like her driveway put in first. 
 
Haakinson said that he is not the contractor and does not know whose driveway will be done first or last. 
 
Theresa did say that the guys did try to help. 
 
Emerson said the situation will be completed soon. 
 



Page 4 of 8, July 1, 2013 
 

Motion by Kostrzewski, seconded by Anderson, to approve Pay Application #5 for Larson Excavating 
for $70,052.17 as presented.  All Ayes 
 
Project #448:  Storm Issues 
 
Dean Alcott, Rose Alcott, Dennis Ruhoff and Mary Ruhoff were all in attendance to speak regarding the 
storm issues they had following the recent storm. 
 
Dean Alcott would like to get information as to why they had so much sewer backup. 
 
Haakinson said they were trying their best to keep up.  The age of the infrastructure is old and we had a 
100 yr rainfall.   
 
Emerson said that Dean has had a problem with this before after a heavy rain. 
 
Haakinson said that this is the oldest part in town of residential mains. 
 
Dennis Ruhoff spoke and said that there have been problems with the lift station by his house.  There is 
no backup pump on this lift station and no way to hook up a generator. 
 
Dean Alcott said there is no warning light and asking if a check valve can be added.  We deserve the 
same sanitary sewer as everyone else in town. 
 
Dean Alcott said that his basement is completely gone.  What responsibility does the city have? 
 
Pederson said the research would have to be done. 
 
Dennis Ruhoff said sewage is not covered under his insurance. 
 
Rose Alcott said that the sewage had been sitting in the basement for five days.  When the patio door 
was opened, the sewage ran to the lake. 
 
Dean Alcott asked what happened to the backup generator. 
 
Haakinson said it ran until it got hot.  The backup generator is serviced every two months and runs about 
an hour. 
 
Dean Alcott said other towns run theirs about eight hours every week. 
 
Haakinson said that he felt there was nothing more they could have done.  It was just a bad situation. 
 
Emerson said that the city should know more in a few days.  Alcotts and Ruhoffs would like to be 
notified when the city finds out more. 
 
Project #372:  VFW 
 
Al Kral was in attendance.  Kral verified to the council that the Memorial is a community project.   
 
After the May council meeting, there was confusion as to what the city was going to pay for. 
 
Kostrzewski remembers that the city was going to pay for the directional lighting on the pole. 
 



Page 5 of 8, July 1, 2013 
 

 
Kral would like to also put in low voltage lights on the four big stones with an electrical eye along with 
the light on the pole. 
 
Kral stated that the Lions would like to have power. 
 
Emerson said that John Temple had talked to him and it was Kral who approached the Lions to put in 
power.  Kral said that he told Temple that he would have to deal with the city. 
 
Emerson asked Haakinson if he would work with Kral to get this figured out. 
 
Kral said that the VFW would take care of the ground lighting. 
 
The total cost will be about $1,800.00 for service. 
 
Chub Hensley said he wants the memorial to help the community. 
 
Emerson said an agreement will be drafted and signed to avoid future problems. 
 
Motion by Olson, seconded by Emerson, to approve to pay for 50% of the bill for service for the VFW 
Memorial.  All Ayes  
 
Project #170:  Chamber 
 
Justin Dahlheimer was in attendance. 
 
The Chamber is planning a 5K run on August 9th, 2013.  The route will include crossing Nokomis 
Street.  Traffic would need to be managed for about 20 minutes while the runners cross. 
 
Gulbranson said that it would be ok.  Short term blocking of a state road is ok.  Police will take of it. 
 
Dahlheimer asked the council about mowing around the Osakis signs.  This was given to the Chamber 
by Osakis Onward but is getting expensive for them. 
 
Emerson asked if the city would be able to do this and Haakinson said that they will mow by the signs. 
 
Dahlheimer stated that they appreciate them mowing by the signs. 
 
It was asked as to how the Chamber was going to control the underage drinking. 
 
Dahlheimer said they would be using wristbands. 
 
Kostrzewski would like the Chamber to card everyone at the gate.  Those that are of age would get a 
wristband. 
 
Dahlheimer stated that they will do that. 
 
Motion by Kostrzewski, seconded by Anderson, to accept and approve the 1 Day Liquor License for the 
Chamber of Commerce for August 9, 2013 and to approve the route for the 5K run on August 9, 2013 
which includes closing Nokomis Street East at 1st Avenue East.  All Ayes 
 
 



Page 6 of 8, July 1, 2013 
 

 
Project #249:  Planning & Zoning 
 
Council received the Osakis City Council Staff Report dated June 24, 2013 from John Anderson 
(Municipal Development Group). 
 
Anderson made comments to fill in the council regarding the BDP Estates.  The house on Lot #6 is to be 
torn down and rebuilt.  John Anderson was involved and he updated the documents to allow this. 
 
Steve Steinle was in attendance.  Steinle has been concerned about the cost factor.  The costs became an 
issue for some of the owners the further it proceeded.  The owners wanted to demolish the house but 
preserve the rights to rebuild.  The house is viewed as a safety hazard and is unsightly to the neighbors. 
 
Steinle stated the PRDO meets the terms of the discussion with John Anderson. 
 
Motion by Pederson, seconded by Emerson, to approve the removal of 19D & it’s entirely and 21H & its 
entirety.  All Ayes 
 
Resolution #2013-17 was presented by Anderson, seconded by Kostrzewski, to approve an Amendment 
to the BDP Estates Planned Unit Development Overlay.  When put to a vote, the Resolution passed 
unanimously.  
 
Motion by Kostrzewski, seconded by Emerson, to approve the Planning & Zoning meeting minutes from 
June 20, 2013.  All Ayes  
 
Project #343:  Fireworks Lease 
 
Council received a copy of the Fireworks Lease Agreement from the Osakis Country Club. 
 
Blocking City Streets 
 
Central Lakes Cruzers are requesting to block Main Street on July 12, 2013 for their annual car show. 
 
Discussion was held to leave the grocery store parking lot and bank drive up entrance accessible. 
 
Motion by Emerson, seconded by Olson, to approve the request to block Main Street West from the 
grocery store entrance to Central Avenue and Main Street East from Central Avenue to the bank drive 
up entrance.  All Ayes 
 
Letter from a Concerned Resident 
 
Council received a letter regarding a couple businesses having too many items on the sidewalk.  The 
citizen is concerned for someone who is trying to get by that would be in a wheelchair or scooter. 
 
Officer Gulbranson said that he has talked to both of these businesses. 
 
Contract During Special Emergency 
 
A Resolution was presented by Emerson, seconded by Anderson, to approve Resolution #2013-18 for 
the city to Contract During Special Emergency.  When put to a vote, the Resolution passed 
unanimously.  
 



Page 7 of 8, July 1, 2013 
 

 
Letter from Sauk River 
 
Council received a letter from Sauk River Watershed District. 
 
The letter is in regards to a complaint they received regarding the Osakis Creamery washing off 
chemical equipment, changing oil and conducting other repairs on the street. 
 
The Planning & Zoning discussed this matter at their June 20, 2013 meeting.  The Creamery had agreed 
to wash their trucks at their new site south east of Osakis.  But they would like to keep doing 
maintenance on the trucks at Osakis Creamery at 114 Main Street West. 
 
The council discussed this issue and is requesting the Creamery to do all maintenance on their property 
and not on the street. 
 
A letter will be written to inform them of this. 
 
Sandy Shores Townhomes 
 
Residents of the Sandy Shores Townhomes approached Pederson and asked if anything could be done 
about the culvert by their property. 
 
Due to the recent storm, the flow of water could not compete with the water that was going through the 
culvert under State Hwy 27. 
 
Olson stated that they have asked for the culvert to be closed several times. 
 
Because the culvert is under the state highway, this would have to be taken up with the state. 
 
Concrete Plant 
 
Anderson had called John Woodhall to discuss the property at 207 2nd Avenue East.  Anderson said he 
would sell the property for $100,000.00.  The property is assessed for $89,000.00 to $90,000.00.   
 
Anderson is asking if the EDA may be interested in purchasing the land. 
 
Other Information 
 
Haakinson said that a portion of rip rap was taken out by the beach due to the storm.  Council feels it 
needs to be fixed.   
 
Emerson said that he had been approached about a concern for kids that are fishing by the Channel.  The 
kids are running back and forth and is hard to see them. 
 
It was brought up that there is a sign that is posted – No Fishing from the Bridge. 
 
Police will watch. 
 
Construction of the new bridge will start after Labor Day Weekend. 
 
 
 



Page 8 of 8, July 1, 2013 
 

 
 
Emerson again wanted to thank everyone for an awesome job after the storm. 
 
Kostrzewski would like to acknowledge that the Quilts Along the Trail Committee have painted the 
benches that are placed around town, and wanted to say that they look very nice. 
 
A Thank You goes out to Kostrzewski for the food that Tip Top Dairy Bar donated and served to the 
workers after the storm.  Kostrzewski said they served about 80 hamburgers to the workers.  
 
 
 
 
Motion Anderson, seconded by Olson, to adjourn the meeting at 9:00 p.m.  All Ayes 
 
 
 
 
__________________________    ________________________________ 
Mayor – Keith Emerson            Deputy City Clerk – Lynnette Swenstad 


